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IPSWICH HERITAGE STUDY 1991 INVENTORY Item No. 45-1731-0030

Name 30 Flint Street, North Ipswich

Former/Other Name

Category House

Location 30 Flint Street, North Ipswich

RPD S4 A8 S9 Par Chuwar

Local Authority Ipswich City Council

AMG Map Sheet SG 56-14, Ipswich Grid MQ7645

Present Tenure Mr P G J Austin, Lot 46, Colledges Road, Karana

Downs Q1ld 4306

Listing Boundary Whole allotment, plus adjoining footpath and
including all established trees.

Other Listings

History

Description

This is a one storey weatherboard house low set on timber stumps close to
the front and westerly alignments. Its corrugated iron pyramidal roof is
extended to the rear left by a hipped projection. The stepped down,
slightly convex front verandah roof is also of corrugated iron. The front
verandah walls are lined internally with horizontal chamferboards, and has
exposed cross bracing and closely spaced studs. Sash windows overlook the
verandah, and on the side walls they feature battened corrugated iron
window hoods. Timber verandah detailing includes chamfered uprights with
simple dowelled balustrading.

Significance Level Xlocal city regional state national
. As an example of traditional materials, form and detailing

. For its streetscape value

Significance of Interior Not inspected

Associated Items

This house is complemented by the rooflines of the house at 26 Flint
Street, and also 28 Flint Street which is listed separately.

Comments

Note: This report has been prepared on the basis of evidence examined by the investigator(s)
and seeks to identify the most important heritage values of the item. The purpose of this

report is to provide an initial evaluation. A conservation study by a qualified practitioner
should be completed before any action is taken which may affect the significance of the item.

UQASU IPSWICH HERITAGE STUDY 19 November 1991



A \ -

R854 L \/Q
\'\BROWN ¢
! PAR r<

262
Ko oo

Source: Ipswich City Council. City of Ipswich topographic series. Amended
to August 1990. Scale 1:2500. North at top of map. "@" = associated items.



IPSWICH HERITAGE STUDY 1991 INVENTORY Item No. 45-1731-0000

Name Flint Street East, North Ipswich Precinct

Category Precinct

Location 42, 44, 46, 48, 59, 63, 65, 67 Flint Street, North
Ipswich

RPD Various as per the above addresses

Local Authority Ipswich City Council

AMG Map Sheet SG 56-14, Ipswich Grid MQ7645

Present Tenure Various as per the above addresses

Listing Boundary All land, public or private, circumscribed on the

accompanying map, plus adjoining footpath and
including all established trees.

Other Listings Part of National Trust Flint Street Precinct

History

George and Georgina Walker were both from Polmont, Scotland and came to
Brisbane in 1876. "Ravelston™ , at 46 Flint Street, was built for them as a
low set house about 1880, but it was raised after the 1893 floods. Their
younger son James Walker and wife Alexandrina lived next door at "Dunkeld",
44 Flint Street, built in 1915. "Millfield" at 42 Flint Street was built
for another son, William Walker and his wife Charlotte, before 1915. George
Walker and his sons worked at the Railway Workshops.

Description

This is a group of small, pyramid shaped roofed houses clustered together
where Flint Street rises to Lamington Parade. Hancock’s Sawmill aligns with
the T-junction. On the northern side, the houses at 42 and 46 Flint Street
have steep, stepped roof of red and green. The house at 42 Flint Street has
a bull-nosed roof over the open front verandah with fretwork brackets and
the more elaborate form of dowel balustrading. The house at 46 Flint Street
has a convex roof over front and side verandahs. Posts are now plain and
balustrading has been replaced by lattice. The houses at 42 and 48 Flint
Street, between, and adjacent, have shallower roofs extending over the
verandah: 42 Flint Street with the similar dowel balustrading and with
original lattice above; 48 Flint Street with inter-war detailing to the
verandah, which is sheeted to balustrade height with weatherboards.

On the southern side the houses at 67 and 63 Flint Street are small steep-
roofed houses low to the ground with closed-in front verandahs. Window
hoods, three in decorative sheet metal and a larger one in corrugated iron ’
and battens, are a side-wall feature of the house at 63 Flint Street. A
large spreading palm seen behind the house at 46 Flint Street is a focal
point of the precinct.

Significance Level Xlocal city regional state national
. As examples of traditional materials, forms and details.

. For their streetscape value.

Significance of Interior Not inspected

Comments

Historical information by Ms J Walker, supplied by Ms V Cribb.

Note: This report has been prepared on the basis of evidence examined by the investigator(s)
and seeks to identify the most important heritage values of the item. The purpose of this

report is to provide an initial evaluation. A conservation study by a qualified practitioner
should be completed before any action is taken which may affect the significance of the item.

UQASU IPSWICH HERITAGE STUDY 19 November 1981
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IPSWICH HERITAGE STUDY 1991 INVENTORY Item No. 45-1732-0000

Name Gulland and Ferguson Streets, North Ipswich
Precinct
Former/Other Name

Category Precinct

Location 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9 and 11 Gulland Street; 14,
16, 18, and 20 Ferguson Street; 64A, 66 and 69 Pine
Street, North Ipswich.

RPD Various as per the above addresses

Local Authority Ipswich City Council

AMG Map Sheet SG 56~-14, Ipswich Grid MQ7645

Present Tenure Various as per the above addresses

Listing Boundary All land, public or private, circumscribed on the

accompanying map, plus adjoining footpath and
including all established trees.
Other Listings

History
Description

This precinct is a collection of houses which, on the lower slopes of
Gulland Street, are low set with open verandahs, under slightly set down
curving roofs, showing exposed framing to front chamferboard walls. The
precinct rises to Pine Street, where higher set houses command views out to
the east. The distinct pyramid roof and symmetry of the house at 66 Pine
Street closes the view up Gulland Street. Its paling fence leads into the
more elaborate picket fence of the house at 64A Pine Street, a house of
towering hipped rooves and dominant pedimented porticoc. The front verandah
is weatherboard to sill height, with a shallow slatted panel central to
each bay under the sill line.

High set houses at 14 and 20 Ferguson Street are dominant at the eastern
extent of that Street, the exaggerated height of the understorey stumps is
emphasised by layers of vertical battening. Verandah bays are open above,
overlooking the slopes which lead down to the Bremer River.

Significance Level Xlocal city regional state national

. This precinct is significant in the local context as a collection of
consistent early house types, low set, and dramatically high set, on
slopes and gullies close to steep river banks.

Significance of Interior Not inspected
Associated Items

Comments

The modern weatherboard structure at 8 Gulland Street does not require
heritage constraints at this time.

Note: This report has been prepared on the basis of evidence examined by the investigator(s)
and seeks to identify the most important heritage values of the item. The purpose of this

report is to provide an initial evaluation. A conservation study by a qualified practitioner
should be completed before any action is taken which may affect the significance of the item.

UQASU IPSWICH HERITAGE STUDY 19 November 1991
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IPSWICH HERITAGE STUDY 1991 INVENTORY Item No. 56-1884-0000

Name Hill Street, Raymond’s Hill Precinct

Former/Other Name

Category Precinct

Location 15, 16, 18, 20, 21, 22, 24, 26, 28, 30, 32, 34, 36
Hill Street, Raymond’s Hill

RPD Various as per the above addresses

Local Authority Ipswich City Council

AMG Map Sheet SG 56-14, Ipswich Grid MQ7645

Present Tenure Various as per the above addresses

Listing Boundary All land, public or private, circumscribed on the

accompanying map, plus adjoining footpath and
including all established trees.
History

Description

The precinct rises to its highest point at the house at 16 Hill Street,
offering extensive views down the eastern slopes. Views to the southeast
include the picturesque gabled cottage at 21 Hill Street, in the
foreground. The house at 21 Hill Street is blue painted, with roof
extensions at a shallower angle over front verandah and rear extension.
Twelve-paned sash windows are symmetrically placed either side of the
central front door in a short front wall where closely spaced studs and
Ccross bracing are exposed on horizontal boarding. In the middle distance,
the Liverpool Street Precinct can be clearly identified.

The prominent house at 16 Hill Street, "Hillview", is a large square plan
house, with roof extending from frontal hip gablet, over open front and
side verandahs. A fretwork pediment, with central fan shaped motif,
surmounts the central entrance bay. Full height sash windows with central
coloured panes are symmetrically placed either side of a panelled entrance
door with coloured sidelights. The house appears to be undergoing
renovations.

As Hill Street slopes east, the houses are more modest but exhibit a
consistency and authenticity. The house at 18 Hill Street, like 16 Hill
Street set one to two metres above sloping ground, stands on a plain
grassed allotment. Verandah posts and fretwork brackets are intact.
Although metal balustrade and verandah gates have been added, cross bracing
to the front wall of tongue and groove boards is exposed. The houses at 22,
30 and 32 Hill Street are similar in form. Each has a pyramid short ridged.
roof and stepped down, bull-nosed, front verandah roof. At 22 High Street,
on higher ground, the verandah extends along both sides. At 30 Hill Street
along one side only, and at 32 Hill Street confined to the front, verandah
balustrades are a similar elaborated dowel form. Fretwork brackets are also
not dissimilar; those at 30 Hill Street being further embellished with a
battened skirt.

The houses at 24 and 26 Hill Street have a front gable projection, with
decorative-hooded central sash windows and sidelights, occupying the high
side of the front verandah section. The open verandah bays of 24 Hill
Street are framed by curved brackets forming a shallow arched valance with
pendant, the entrance framed in heavier arching and slatted members. The
balustrade is a dowelled form slightly simpler than that at 22 and 30 Hill
Street. The verandah of the house at 26 Hill Street has been enclosed, but
remnants of simple dowelled balustrade, and post brackets, can be seen,
backed by sheeting. In front of both houses old picket fences remain
intact, as does an interesting timber gate at 24 Hill Street. At the lower
extent of the precinct the house at 36 Hill Street is secluded by trees,
but presents a discrete front gable projection with central wooded sash and
sidelights beside an open front verandah complete with fretwork brackets
and crossed balustrading. The verandah continues around the lower side.



Item No. 56-1884-0000

Opposite "Hillview", at the higher extent of the precinct, is the house at
15 Hill Street, an unpainted house with rust-streaked pyramid roof and
curved roof over front and side verandahs. The front verandah is sheeted to
balustrade height with weatherboards. Fretwork brackets remain in place on
the posts above, and verandah gates with broken lattice lower panels lead
in to a shaded space where studs and bracing are exposed on horizontal
boarded walls. The rear extension, seen from Pull Street, is of special
interest. Closely spaced studs and cross bracing are exposed on an
unpainted wall of horizontal boarding. A corrugated iron stove recess and
curved roofed kitchen verandah section complete the form. Where a casement
window has been added, the unlined wall is sheeted above to the line of the
eaves, which do not overhang.

Significance Level Xlocal city regional state national

. The precinct is significant in the local context due to its prominent
position, views offered, and its collection of house forms varying
relative to their position on the hill slope.

. The house at 15 Hill Street is a rare example of exposed framing on
an external wall.

Significance of Interior Not inspected
Associated Items
Comments

The house structures at 20, 28 and 34 Hill Street do not required heritage
constraints at this time.

Note: This report has been prepared on the basis of evidence examined by the investigator(s)
and seeks to identify the most important heritage values of the item. The purpose of this

report is to provide an initial evaluation. A conservation study by a qualified practitioner
should be completed before any action is taken which may affect the significance of the item.

UQASU IPSWICH HERITAGE STUDY 19 November 1991
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IPSWICH HERITAGE STUDY 1991 INVENTORY Item No. 56-1886-0009

Name 9 Holmes Street, Raymond’s Hill

Former/Other Name

Category Hospital

Location 9 Holmes Street, Raymond’s Hill

RPD L2 RP90515 Par Chuwar

Local Authority Ipswich City Council

AMG Map Sheet SG 56-14, Ipswich Grid MQ7645

Present Tenure Mr D N Dudley, 9 Holmes Street, Raymond’s Hill Qld
4305

Listing Boundary Whole allotment, plus adjoining footpath and

including all established trees.
Other Listings

History

An occupant believes that this building was once used as an infectious
diseases hospital, and the house next door at 7 Holmes Street was a
Doctor’s residence. This doctor’s brother eventually moved into 9 Holmes
Street. Allen Cooper of the National Trust of Queensland, Ipswich Branch,
reports that the building is unusual in its extensive use of pressed metal
internally, not only on the ceiling, but also the walls, cornices, and so
on. The present occupant confirms that this pressed metal detailing still
exists.

Description

The house sits slightly back from the front alignment, and at an angle to
the present Holmes Street. With only sparse plantings it remains visible to
the street, although a shop set hard on the footpath alignment obscures it
somewhat in views from the south. It has a low pitched, hipped corrugated
iron roof with long transverse ridge with gablets, which extends
continuously over the front and side verandahs. This line is interrupted
with a central projecting gable over the front entrance, with a decorated
verge and truncated finial attached by a horizontal member to the barge
board. The building is moderately high set, with some excavation under the
northern corner, enclosed by concrete block walls, to allow for a garage.
The verandahs have also been enclosed with sheeting and banks of louvre
windows.

Significance Level Xlocal city regional state national
. As an example of traditional form
. For its historic associations as a hospital

Significance of Interior
Not inspected. However, the extensive use of pressed metal is unusual.
Associated Items

The pyramid roofed house next door at 7 Holmes Street.

Comments

The property has been listed to encourage the retention of the internal
pressed metal detailing.

Note: This report has been prepared on the basis of evidence examined by the investigator(s)
and seeks to identify the most important heritage values of the item. The purpose of this

report is to provide an initial evaluation. A conservation study by a qualified practitioner
should be completed before any action is taken which may affect the significance of the item.

UQASU IPSWICH HERITAGE STUDY 19 November 1991
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IPSWICH HERITAGE STUDY 1991 INVENTORY Item No. 56-1886-0019

Name 19 Holmes Street, Raymond’s Hill

Former/Other Name

Category House

Location 19 Holmes Street, Raymond’s Hill

RPD L9 RP61416 Par Chuwar

Local Authority Ipswich City Council

AMG Map Sheet SG 56-14, Ipswich Grid MQ7645

Present Tenure Mr D H Wheland, 19 Holdes Street, Raymond’s Hill
Qld 4305

Listing Boundary Whole allotment, plus adjoining footpath and

including all established trees.

History

The present owner believes the house was built in 1886 by Ipswich builder
Mr McKenzie for a local lolly maker, Mr Stoodley. The present owner bought
the house in 1948 and made a number of alterations at that time.

Description

The house is presently parallel to Holmes Street, with the original front
facing the south-west. It is basically a square plan house moderately high
set on timber stumps, with a rear left, semi-detached kitchen house. The
main part of the house has a corrugated iron pyramidal roof, with a
separate, stepped down corrugated iron verandah roof which wraps around the
entire house to abut the semi-detached kitchen house. The verandahs are
presently enclosed. The front verandah still retains the original dowelled
balustrading, and has timber venetian blinds from handrail height. The
front verandah wall is lined with horizontal chamferboards, and features
two symmetrically placed bay windows with four-paned sash windows,
projecting into the verandah space. The panelled front door features
sidelights and fanlights. On the right side of the house, extending to the
semi—-detached rear kitchen house, the verandahs have been sheeted with
narrow chamferboards and have aluminium framed sliding windows. To the left
the verandah has been sheeted with weatherboards and also has aluminium
sliding windows. The present entry has been built into this verandah
enclosure. This verandah wall is lined with horizontal chamferboards and
has an exposed frame. The semi-detached kitchen house has a hipped,
corrugated iron roof, is lined with wide chamferboards, and features two
curved, fretworked, corrugated iron window hoods over sash windows. An
enclosed verandah has been added to the southerly wall, and joins the main
house’s verandah.

Significance Level Xlocal city regional state national
. As an early house of the area.
Significance of Interior Not inspected

Associated Items
Comments

Historical information supplied by present owner, Mr Whelband.

Note: This report has been prepared on the basis of evidence examined by the investigator(s)
and seeks to identify the most important heritage values of the item. The purpose of this

report is to provide an initial evaluation. A conservation study by a qualified practitioner
should be completed before any action is taken which may affect the significance of the item.

UQASU IPSWICH HERITAGE STUDY 19 November 1991






IPSWICH HERITAGE STUDY 1991 INVENTORY

Item No. 56-1885-0002

Name
Former/Other Name
Category
Location

RPD

Local Authority
AMG Map Sheet

Present Tenure

Listing Boundary

2 Holdsworth Road, Raymond’s Hill

House

2 Holdsworth Road, Raymond’s Hill
L2 RP107803 Par Chuwar
Ipswich City Council
SG 56-14, Ipswich Grid MQ7645

Mr E & Mrs J A Golebiowski, 2 Holdsworth Road,
Raymond’s Hill Qld 4305

Whole allotment, plus adjoining footpath and

including all established trees.
Other Listings

History

This house was built in 1907 and originally stood on property which
extended to Crane’s Rd. The adjacent allotment, on which 4 Holdsworth St is
situated, was originally part of that property. The house retains much of
its original construction, including the leadlights, fanlights and also the
fireplace. The bathroom door however, now opens to the inside instead of
the outside.

Description

This house stands at the corner of Holdsworth Road, and the beginning of
the Waterworks Road, Raymond’s Hill Precinct, listed separately. The house
is obscured somewhat from the street by dense plantings, including a large
camphor laurel tree whose wide canopy spreads over the footpath in
Holdsworth Road. The house has a corrugated iron pyramidal roof, with a
stepped down, slightly convex verandah roof wrapping around the front and
side verandahs also of corrugated iron. Fanlighted french doors lead to the
front verandah, and its panelled front door has both fanlights and narrow
sidelights. The verandah walls are lined internally with vertical boards,
and have an exposed frame featuring nogging and studs. Timber verandah
detailing includes moulded capitals and paired brackets atop chamfered
uprights. Balustrading is almost absent, although that at the side of the
front steps appears to be modified triple rail. A scalloped timber batten
fence completes the picture.

.
national

Significance Level Xlocal city regional state

. As an example of traditional materials, form and detail.

. For its streetscape value at the entrance to the Waterworks Road
precinct.

Significance of Interior Not inspected

Associated Items

Comments

Historical information supplied by Mrs J Golebiowski.

Note: This report has been prepared on the basis of evidence examined by the investigator(s)

and seeks to identify the most important heritage values of the item. The purpose of this
report is to provide an initial evaluation. A conservation study by a qualified practitioner
should be completed before any action is taken which may affect the significance of the item.

UQASU IPSWICH HERITAGE STUDY 19 Novempber 1991
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Source: Ipswich City Council. City of Ipswich topographic series. Amended
to August 1990. Scale 1:2500. North at top of map. "@" = associated items.



IPSWICH HERITAGE STUDY 1991 INVENTORY Item No. 45-1735-0001

Name Hancock Bros. Pty. Ltd.

Former/Other Name James Reilly sawmill

Category Sawmill complex

Location 1 Lamington Parade, North Ipswich 4305

RPD Lot 1/2 of 1122428 and Lot 277 of SL12370, Par
Chuwar, Co Stanley

Local Authority Ipswich City Council ,

AMG Map Sheet SG 56-14, Ipswich Grid MQ7645

Present Tenure Hancock Bros Pty Ltd
P O Box 79

Ipswich Qld 4305
Listing Boundary All land circumscribed in the accompanying plan.
Other Listings -
History

A sawmill and flourmill were initially established on this site in 1866 by
James Reilly. The Hancock company was established in 1872 at Pine Mountain
and in 1879 purchased this site and sawmill from James Reilly. A wharf was
constructed on the Bremer River to receive overseas timber; this was last
used in 1961. The company expanded into the Queensland Woollen Mills
complex to the south in c1984. The company is still privately owned by the
Hancock family and operates mills at Cairns in north Queensland and at Koen
Park, Victowria in addition to the Ipswich mill.

Description

A comprehensive timber processing complex including a sawmill, plywood-
making facilities, the remains of its own power station, and a disused
wharf on the Bremer River.

Significance Level local Xcity regional state national

. The site of a local company for over one hundred years.

. Possibly the only plywood-making facility in the State.

Significance of Interior Not Applicable
Associated Items

Queensland Woollen Mills to the south which has been partially taken over
by Hancock Bros Pty Ltd as their ’'Top Mill’.

Comments

A contextural history and industrial archaeological survey of the whole
site is required, followed by preparation of explicit statements of
heritage significance.

Note: This report has been prepared on the basis of evidence examined by the investigator(s)
and seeks to identify the most important heritage values of the item. The purpose of this

report is to provide an initial evaluation. A conservation study by a qualified practitioner
should be completed before any action is taken which may affect the significance of the item.

UQASU IPSWICH HERITAGE STUDY 19 November 1991
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IPSWICH HERITAGE STUDY 1991 INVENTORY Item No. 45-2223-0000

Name Heiner Road Bridge Approach

Former/Other Name

Category Road

Location Heiner Road, North Ipswich 4305

RPD Road Reserve

Local Authority Ipswich City Council

AMG Map Sheet SG 56-14, Ipswich Grid MQ7645
Present Tenure Commissioner for Main Roads

Department of Transport, Brisbane Q 4000

Listing Boundary All land, public and private, circumscribed in the
accompanying plan.

Other Listings -
History

The railway bridge, built in 1865, was arranged to carry both a railway
track and a road. The road connecting the bridge to The Terrace was named
Heiner Road. The road crossed the Wharf Railway Line via an overbridge
whose abutments were constructed of similar sandstone to the abutments of
the Bremer Bridge of 1865. Heiner Road continued in use until the David
Trumpy bridge was opened, when its surface was removed leaving only a
gravel track.

Description

A dusty track behind the Queensland Railways Historical Centre leading to
some railway engineering workshops and to the Bremer Bridge area. The road
crosses the old Wharf Line via a bridge whose cutting is wide enough for a
single track only. It is constructed of hand hewn blocks of medium to
coarse grained and pebbly sandstone which is very soft and is considerably
weathered. The blocks are separated by lead s...ets and the cutting has been
surface grouted with cement. The sandstone is very similar to that used in
the abutments of the 1865 Bremer River Bridge which is in close proximity.
The bridge over the cutting is very recent as evidenced by the modern
Queensland Railways logo marked into the concrete and LXXXX (1990) on the
wooden supports.

Significance Level local Xcity regional state national

. Part of the road to North Ipswich from 1865 to the opening of the
David Trumpy bridge.

. An early sandstone railway cutting using lead between the hand hewn
blocks.

Significance of Interior Not Applicable

Associated Items The Bremer Bridges

Comments

Cutting is very complete even though the sandstone is showing considerable
damage from the environment. It would form an excellent feature for an
heritage trail.

Note: This report has been prepared on the basis of evidence examined by the investigator (s)
and seeks to identify the most important heritage values of the item. The purpose of this

report is to provide an initial evaluation. A conservation study by a qualified practitioner
should be completed before any action is taken which may affect the significance of the item.

UQASU IPSWICH HERITAGE STUDY 19 November 1991
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IPSWICH HERITAGE STUDY 1991 INVENTORY Item No. 45-1738-0015

Name Hotel Cecil

Former/Other Name Imperial Hotel

Category Hotel

Location 15 Lowry Street, North Ipswich.

RPD L106 I122423 & L15 RP211745 Par Chuwar.

Local Authority Ipswich City Council

AMG Map Sheet SG 56-14, Ipswich Grid MQ7645

Present Tenure Surrey Properties Pty Ltd; 15 Lowry Street, North

Ipswich 4305.

Listing Boundary Whole allotment, plus adjoining footpath and
including all established trees.

Other Listings National Trust Queensland, Department of
Environment and Heritage.
History
An article in the Queensland Times, 19 April 1887 announced that James
Cooper was trading out of the ’recently erected and furnished’ Imperial
Hotel, on the corner of Downs and Lowry Streets, North Ipswich. The
competition from this new hotel seems to have led to the closure within a
year of the Royal Engineer’s Hotel on the corner of Downs Street and The
Terrace, which had been operating since the mid 1860’s. The Queensland
Times of 5 April 1888 reported the transfer of the lease to John Abbott,
but by April 1889 the Queensland Times reported that the hotel was part of
John Abbott’s Estate, and on 3 August 1889 the Government Gazette announced
that John Cooper had regained the licence.

There was a push by Ipswich residents to close a number of hotels, as their
numbers were then in excess of that allowable by legislation. John Cooper’s
Imperial Hotel was one of three that consequently lost their licences, as
reported in the Queensland Times of 2 April 1891. However, in July 1891
there was an application by the National Workmen’s Club for a club licence
for the premises. Despite some reservations about whether the club had
adequate control of the premises to satisfy the requirements for the
licence, it was granted. The Government Gazette on 28 January 1904
announced the granting of a licence to Thomas Murray at the then-named
Hotel Cecil. In 13904 the licensee was Thomas Murray, and in 1905 the
licence passed to W Osborne. By 1911 it had passed to Alexander G Burnett,
and in 1918 appears to have passed to his wife, Catherine. There has been a
succession of licensees since this time. The Hotel has recently undergone
sympathetic additions and refurbishment.

Description

The Hotel consists of a two-storeyed brick structure with rendered and
painted ornamental detail on the street facades. The frontages to Downs and
Lowry Streets have verandahs on posts over the footpath with corrugated
iron roofs. Above the verandah roof the main walls are articulated with a
cornice punctuated by a series of attached pilasters in low relief, each
projecting slightly above a horizontal parapet. A rendered central parapet
feature occurs between the middle pair of pilasters on each of the two
street frontages. Much of the cast iron decoration balustrading and
verandah posts appear to be recent. A single storeyed wing extends along
Lowry Street, most of it recent but the first three window bays date from
an earlier stage, being part of the single storey wing designed by
architect Henry Wyman in 1915, although altered in roof line. A recent
detached bottle shop further along Lowry Street reproduces the parapeted
skyline of the earlier corner building. Much of the interior has been
renovated recently in period style with images of Ipswich heritage designed
by Gambles Drafting Service and built by John Kresmastos. Some of the
traditional timber structure including covered verandah rafters has been
reproduced in timber and steel. The cedar fireplace mantle and staircase
survive.
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IPSWICH HERITAGE STUDY 1991 INVENTORY Item No. 45-1746-0008

Name Ipswich Gas and Coke Company Ltd.

Former/Other Name Gas Corporation of Queensland Ltd.

Category Gasworks/gasometer complex

Location 8 The Terrace, North Ipswich 4305

RPD Lot 2 of I16226 and Lot 2 of RP97045, Par Chuwar,
Co Stanley

Local Authority Ipswich City Council

AMG Map Sheet SG 56-14, Ipswich Grid MQ7645

Present Tenure Gas Corporation of Queensland Limited

AMP Place, 10 Eagle Street
Brisbane Qld 4000

Listing Boundary All land circumscribed in the accompanying plan.

Other Listings The gasometer by the State Heritage Register and
the National Trust of Queensland as part of the
Portal Precinct.

History

The Ipswich Gas and Coke Company Ltd purchased land on the north bank of
the Bremer River fronting The Terrace in early 1877, with the first gas
mains being laid in North Ipswich later in that year and street gas
lighting in Ipswich. In June 1877 gas lights were first 1lit in the School
of Arts building and by May 1878 gas was in general use. Reconstruction was
undertaken in the 1900s, including continuous vertical retorts and
Australia’s first spiral gasometer (1905). The present gasometer was
constructed in the early 1950s. A second major reconstruction occurred in
the late 1970s when Boral replaced coal by natural gas.

Description
Facilities for storing natural gas and meterinc nd controlling its supply

to customers in Ipswich. The small building on the site is probably the
early 1900s valve house.

Significance Level local Xcity regional state national
. An example of a gasometer.
. The gasometer is a landmark of high visibility assigning industrial

character to North Ipswich.
Significance of Interior Not inspected
Associated Items
Comments

The listed gasometer was erected between 1951 and 1954 and has minimal
industrial heritage significance. The site requires an industrial
archaeological survey and the preparation of explicit statements of
cultural significance.

Note: This report has been prepared on the basis of evidence examined by the investigator (s)
and seeks to identify the most important heritage values of the item. The purpose of this

report is to provide an initial evaluation. A conservation study by a qualified practitioner
should be completed before any action is taken which may affect the significance of the item.
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